
 

 

County Buildings, Stafford 
DDI 01785 276147 

Please ask for Chantelle Denham 
Email: chantelle.denham@staffordshire.gov.uk 

 

 

 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Joint Archives Committee 
 

Thursday 3 March 2022 
10:00 

Conference Room, 4th Floor, Civic Centre, Glebe Street, Stoke-on-Trent, ST4 
1HH 

 
John Tradewell 

Director of Corporate Services 
23 February 2022 

 

 
A G E N D A 

 
1.  Apologies  
   

2.  Declarations of Interest in accordance with Standing 
Order 16 

 

   
3.  Minutes of meeting held on 11 November 2021 (Pages 1 - 6) 

   
4.  Predicted Outturn 2021/22 and 2022/23 Revenue 

Budget 

(Pages 7 - 16) 

   
 Joint report of the Director of Corporate Services 

(Staffordshire County Council) and Director of Strategy and 
Resources (Stoke-on-Trent City Council) 

 

   
5.  Review of Joint Agreement (Pages 17 - 56) 

   
 Joint report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director for 

Families and Communities (Staffordshire County Council) and 
Director of Strategy and Resources (Stoke-on-Trent City 
Council) 

 

   
6.  Staffordshire History Centre Project - Update (Pages 57 - 70) 

   
 Joint report of Deputy Chief Executive and Director for 

Families and Communities (Staffordshire County Council) and 
Director of Strategy and Resources (Stoke-on-Trent City 

Council) 

 

   
7.  Predicted Performance Outturn 2021/2022 (Pages 71 - 82) 

   
 Joint report of Deputy Chief Executive and Director for  



 

Families and Communities (Staffordshire County Council) and 
Director of Strategy and Resources (Stoke-on-Trent City 

Council) 
   

8.  Disposals from Staffordshire Archive Collections (Pages 83 - 92) 
   

 Joint report of Deputy Chief Executive and Director for 
Families and Communities (Staffordshire County Council) and 

Director of Strategy and Resources (Stoke-on-Trent City 
Council) 

 

   

9.  Date of Next Meeting  
   

 Thursday 23 June 2022, Time and Venue to be confirmed  
   

10.  Exclusion of the Public  
   

 The Chairman to move:- 
 
“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the 

following items of business which involve the likely disclosure 
of exempt information as defined in the paragraphs of Part 1 

of Schedule 12A (as amended) of the Local Government Act 
1972 indicated below”. 

 

 

PART TWO 
 

(All reports in this section are on pink paper) 

 

   

11.  Exempt minutes of meeting held on 11 November 2021 (Pages 93 - 94) 
   

 (exemption paragraphs 2 and 3)  
   
12.  Relocation of Stoke-on-Trent City Archives  

   
 (exemption paragraphs 2 and 4) 

  
Exempt Joint oral report of Deputy Chief Executive and 

Director of Families and Communities (Staffordshire County 
Council) and Director of Strategy and Resources (Stoke-on-

Trent City Council) 

 

   
 

 

Membership 
 

Mark Sutton 

Lorraine Beardmore 
 

Victoria Wilson 

Mark Deaville 
 



 

 
Notes for Members of the Press and Public 

 
Filming of Meetings 

 
Staffordshire County Council is defined as a Data Controller under the Data 

Protection Act 2018. The County Council has agreed that Public meetings 
should be the subject of live web transmission ‘webcasting’. Fixed cameras 

are located within meeting room for this purpose.  
 
The webcast will be live on the County Council’s website and recorded for 

subsequent play-back for 12 months. The recording will also be uploaded to 
YouTube. By entering the meeting room and using the seats around the 

meeting tables you are deemed to be consenting to being filmed and to the 
possible use of those images and sound recordings for the purpose of 

webcasting.  
 

If you have privacy concerns about the webcast or do not wish to have your 
image captured then please contact the Member and Democratic Services 
officer named at the top right of the agenda. 

 
Recording by Press and Public 

 
Recording (including by the use of social media) by the Press and Public is 

permitted from the public seating area provided it does not, in the opinion of 
the chairman, disrupt the meeting.  

 





- 1 - 
 

Minutes of the Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Joint Archives Committee 
meeting held on 11 November 2021 

 
Present: Mike Davies (Invitee/Observer), Mark Sutton, Lorraine Beardmore and 

Victoria Wilson 
 
 

 
PART ONE 

 
8. Declarations of Interest in accordance with Standing Order 16 

 

There were no Declarations of Interest made. 
 
9. Minutes of the meeting held on 24 June 2021 

 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 24 June 2021 be confirmed and 

signed by the Chairman. 
 
10. Predicted Outturn 2021/22 

 

The Committee considered a joint report of the Director of Corporate 

Services (Staffordshire County Council) and the Director of Strategy and 
Resources (Stoke-on-Trent City Council) setting out:- (i) the predicted net 

revenue outturn budget position at 2021/22 year end and; (i) the anticipated 
reserves balance at 2021/22 year end (schedule 1 to the signed minutes). 

 
Members noted that the Joint Archive Service was estimated to break even. 
Core Services had a projected overspend of £1,177 (which included a £2,889 

transfer to reserves) whereas Sites and Public Services for both the County 
and City Councils had underspends of £177 and £1,000 respectively.    

 
The forecast combined balance in three reserves was projected to amount to 

£193,315 comprising:- (i) General Reserve - £125,472; (ii) Acquisition 
Reserve - £57,542 and; (iii) Art Fund Grant – Minton - £10,301, ie 

approximately £241,000.     
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted.  
 
11. Review of Fees and Charges 

 

The Committee considered a joint report of the Deputy Chief Executive and 

Director for Families and Communities (Staffordshire County Council) and 
the Director of Strategy and Resources (Stoke-on-Trent City Council) setting 
out the proposed fees and charges for introduction by the Joint Archive and 

Heritage Service from 1 April 2022 (schedule 2 to the signed minutes).  
 

The Service’s scheme of Fees and charges had been reviewed on an annual 
basis since 1997. For 2022/23 financial year it was proposed that charges for 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

- 2 - 
 

the Supply of Copies and fees for Talks and Visits remained unchanged 
owing to the increases which had been implemented during 2021/22. In 

addition, the charges made for Talks and Visits, Reproduction Fees and 
Group Visits were also recommended to remain unchanged. However, it was 

proposed that the Research Fee should be increased from £32.00 to £36.00 
per hour.  

 
 

RESOLVED – That the fees and charges proposed in Appendix 2 of this 
report be approved for introduction by the Joint Archive and Heritage Service 
from 1 April 2022. 
 
12. Staffordshire History Centre Project - Update 

 

The Committee considered a joint report of the Deputy Chief Executive and 

Director for Families and Communities (Staffordshire County Council) and 
the Director of Strategy and Resources (Stoke-on-Trent City Council) 
updating them on progress with regard to the Staffordshire History Centre 

project (schedule 3 to the signed minutes). 
 

Members were informed that since their previous meeting, a grant of £3.9 
million had been awarded by the National Lottery Heritage Fund towards 

construction of the Staffordshire History Centre. In addition, permission to 
commence work had been received on the 8 November 2021. 

 
During their presentation of the report the Deputy Chief Executive and 
Director highlighted:- (i) the project Governance Structure for the Delivery 

Phase; (ii) a (provisional) timeline of key decisions for Years 1, 2, 3 and 4 of 
the delivery phase of the project and; (iii) proposed new branding for the 

Centre.  
 

Members noted the four workstreams in the Delivery Phase ie:- (i) Operation 
Change and Business Plan; (ii) Activity and Interpretation Plans; (iii) 

Fundraising and (iv) New Building and that Progress reports were to be 
presented to the Project Board and the Joint Committee at regular intervals. 
They also noted that the existing Staffordshire Record Office was to close 

temporarily in March 2022 to enable preparatory surveys to be undertaken. 
During this time staff would be re-located to temporary accommodation and 

access to collections would be limited.   
 

During the discussion which ensued Members paid tribute to the work of the 
Deputy Chief Executive, Director and their Staff for their excellent work in 

achieving a successful bid enabling the project to proceed. They looked 
forward to its completion and requested that any slippage against the 
timelines identified be reported to them as soon as possible so that 

appropriate remedial measures could be undertaken, as necessary. 
 

Page 2



 

- 3 - 
 

The Member representative of Stoke-on-Trent City Council referred to the 
impending relocation of the City Archive Service and said that it was 

important the proposed new branding fitted with her Authority’s plans for the 
move. Therefore, she requested that the Committee defer a decision on the 

branding until a future meeting to enable further consideration of the matter 
by the City Council. In reply, the Deputy Chief Executive said that whilst a 

wholesale re-design of the logos would be difficult at this stage, the County 
Council could accommodate minor adjustments, to take account of changing 

circumstances at Stoke.    
 
RESOLVED – (a) That the timeline for the Staffordshire History Centre 

project key decisions set out in the report be noted. 
 

(b) That further discussions be held with Stoke-on-Trent City Council 
regarding new branding for the Staffordshire History Centre to ensued it 

fitted pending the move of their Archives Service.  
 
13. Pandemic War Diary Project 

 

The Committee considered a joint report of the Deputy Chief Executive and 

Director for Families and Communities (Staffordshire County Council) and 
the Director of Strategy and Resources (Stoke-on-Trent City Council) 

updating them on progress with regard to the Pandemic ‘War Diary’ Project 
which was being funded through Central Government’s Covid-19 Grant 

(schedule 4 to the signed minutes). 
 
Members were informed that project had three aims ie:- (i) to capture the 

official record of Staffordshire County Council’s response to the Covid-19 
pandemic for transfer to the Archive and Heritage Service as a resource for 

future research; (ii) to undertake an oral history project to capture the 
experiences of Staffordshire County Council Members and Officers during the 

pandemic; (iii) to produce a publicly accessible brochure to share the story of 
how the Authority managed their response and to create a legacy. 

 
Members noted a freelance historian was to be commissioned to work 
alongside a Project Assistant for the oral history project. In addition, items 

for donation to the Archive were being identified through the ‘Lockdown 
Memories’ project (an exhibition of which would be held during March 2022) 

and an appeal for volunteers to take part in the oral history project had 
generated over 140 items responses to date.  

 
During the discussion which ensued Members welcomed the significant 

progress which had been made in the project to date.          
 
RESOLVED – That the report be received and noted. 
 
14. Wellcome Trust Asylums Project 

 

Page 3



 

- 4 - 
 

The Committee considered a joint report of the Deputy Chief Executive and 
Director for Families and Communities (Staffordshire County Council) and 

the Director of Strategy and Resources (Stoke-on-Trent City Council) 
updating them of progress with regard to the  ‘A Case for the Ordinary’ 

Asylums project (schedule 5 to the signed minutes). 
 

The project, which had begun in January 2019 following receipt of £196,469 
grant aid from the Wellcome Trust, aimed to improve access to the 

Staffordshire Asylums collections by:- (i) creating a dataset of historic 
patient information for academic research about Staffordshire’s asylum 
patients using Asylum collections; (ii) engaging with the public, including 

volunteer about the history of mental health in the County through a blog 
and exhibition; (iii) building on the Services’ academic partnerships and 

engage with academic researchers and; (iv) securing match funding for the 
Staffordshire History Centre Project. 

 
Members noted that to date, over 38,000 records had been extracted from 

collections. An online index for pre-1920 open records had been prepared 
and would be made available on-line later in 2021. In addition, a redacted 
dataset of pre-1948 records had been trialled by academics and would be 

advertised alongside the exhibition launch in January 2022. 
 

The Staffordshire Asylums blog was to be made available to the public 
throughout the life of the project until 2022. Since April 2020 the blog site 

had received 11,831 visits and 15,845 page views. 
 

During the discussion which ensued Members welcomed the significant 
progress which had been made in the project to date.         
 

RESOLVED – That the report be received and noted. 
 
15. Date of next meeting - Thursday 24 February 2022 at 10.30 am, venue to be 
confirmed 

 

RESOLVED – That the date, time and venue of the next meeting be noted. 
 
16. Exclusion of the public 

 

RESOLVED - That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following 
items of business which involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in the paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended) of 

Local Government Act 1972 indicated below. 

 

 

PART TWO 
 
17. Relocation of Stoke-on-Trent City Archives - Update 

 

Page 4



 

- 5 - 
 

(exemption paragraph 2 and 4) 
 

The Committee noted an exempt joint oral report of the Deputy Chief 
Executive and Director for Families and Communities (Staffordshire County 

Council) and the Director of Strategy and Resources (Stoke-on-Trent City 
Council) updating them on the relocation of Stoke-on-Trent Archives Service. 
 
 

Chairman 

 
 

Page 5





 

Local Members Interest 

N/A 

 

Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent Joint Archives 
Committee – Thursday 03 March 2022 
 

Joint Archive Service – Predicted Outturn 2021/22 & 
2022/23 Net Revenue Budget 

 

Recommendations 
 

We recommend that the Committee: 
 
a. Notes the current 2021/22 net revenue outturn budget position. 

 
b. Approves the 2022/23 net revenue budget 

 
Report of Director of Corporate Services (Staffordshire County 

Council) and Director of Strategy and Resources (Stoke on Trent 
City Council) 

 
Reasons for Recommendations:  

 
1. The Joint Archive Service net revenue outturn is currently estimated to 

breakeven in the 2021/22 financial year.  

 
2. The partnership continues to hold significant reserves totalling £0.433m. 

This includes: 
 

a. The General Reserve holds a balance of £0.365m 
b. The Archive Acquisition Reserve holds a balance of £0.058m. 

c. A specific reserve of £0.010m from the Art Fund grant for the Minton 
collection. 

 

Predicted Net Revenue Outturn 2021/22 
 

3. The detail of the 2021/22 net revenue outturn for the Joint Archive 
Committee can be found as Appendix 1 to this report. 

 
4. To date, the Joint Archives net spend is currently £0.572m, 76% of the 

current net revenue budget of £0.753m. Latest forecast is for an overall 
breakeven position for this year as follows: 

 

 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

Core Services 
 

5. £0.0028m underspend, of which £0.025m is as of savings against 

employee, training, transport and general expenditure budgets against 
Staffordshire County Council with further savings of £0.003m against 

Stoke-on-Trent employee costs.  
 

6. It is assumed that the overall underspend of £0.028m will be transferred 
to the respective reserves, with the split £0.025m underspend for 
Staffordshire County Council and the £0.003m for Stoke-on-Trent to 

provide, overall, for a breakeven position. 
 

Site and Public Services 
 

7. Staffordshire County Council sites and public services; underspend of 
£0.005m as a result of a slight overspend against employee which is 
offset by savings against training, transport and general expenditure 

budgets. 
 

8. Stoke-on-Trent sites and public services; underspend of £0.028m as a 
result of savings against employee and general expenditure budgets. 

 
9. It is assumed that the underspend for Staffordshire County Council and 

Stoke-on-Trent will be transferred to their respective reserves at year 
end to provide, overall, for a breakeven budget. 

 
Reserves 

 

10. The Joint Archive Service currently holds as three reserves totalling 
£0.433m and set out in Appendix 2. This is made up of: 

 
a. The General Reserve currently has a balance of £0.365m. 

b. The Archive Acquisition Reserve, which enables the Joint Archive 
Service to purchase local collections for the benefit of archives users 
in both the City and the County, currently holds a balance of £0.058m; 

and 
c. The Art Fund Grant (Minton) of £0.010m 

 
11. It is currently forecast that the remaining reserves at the end of 2021/22 

available for use will be c £0.244m, around £0.189m less than the 
current balance. This assumes in 2021/22: 

 

a. Transfer from Staffordshire County Council general reserve funding for 
Lockdown Memories Project £0.001m, previously transferred into the 

reserve during 2020/21 to protect the funding. 
b. Transfer to Staffordshire County Council general reserve underspend; 

£0.030m. 

Page 8



 

c. Transfer from Staffordshire County Council general reserve £0.251m 

as match funding for the History Centre Project which was approved 
on 14 July 2021. 

d. Transfer into reserve of the Stoke-on-Trent general reserve 
underspend; £0.032m. 

 

Net Revenue Budget 2022/23 
 

12. The detail of the 2022/23 net revenue budget for the Joint Archive 
Committee can be found as Appendix 3 to this report. 

 
13. The impact of this is that Staffordshire County Council’s Joint Agreement 

budget is £0.581m (73% of the total JAC budget) whilst the Stoke on 
Trent City Council’s budget has been set at £0.219m (27% of the total 

JAC budget). 
 

14. The total joint Archives Service’s budget for 2022/23 is £0.800m, an 

increase of £0.047m from 2021/22 budget. 
 

15. Staffordshire County Council’s budget has had an inflationary increase to 
reflect additional costs associated with national insurance and pension 

contributions. It also includes the provision for pay awards for 21/22 of 
1.75% that is still to be agreed plus 2% uplift for 22/23. All non-

employee income and expenditure budgets have received a 1% 
inflationary uplift too. 

 
16. Stoke-on-Trent’s budget has had an inflationary increase to reflect 

additional costs associated with national insurance and pension 

contributions. It also includes the provision of 2% for the 22/23 pay 
award. The employee budget also includes a vacancy management factor 

of 3%, which means that the overall employee budget only equates to 
97% of the real term cost and therefore, the service is meant to achieve 

the budget shortfall by holding vacancies throughout the year. All non-
employee income and expenditure budgets have not received any 

inflationary increase and remain as the 21/22 budget. 
 

Legal Implications 

 
17. The Joint Archive Agreement budget will be subject to an annual Audit 

and return. 
 

18. A review of the current Joint Agreement. 
 

Resource and Value for Money Implications 
 

19. The Joint Agreement budget is monitored regularly throughout the year. 
 

Page 9



 

Climate Change Implications 

 
20. No significant implications. 

 

List of Background Documents/Appendices:  
 
Joint and Other Archive Services 2021/2022 & 2022/2023 Budget File. 

Joint Archives Reserves File. 
Appendix 1 - Predicted Outturn Position 2021/22 

Appendix 2 - Archives Reserves 
Appendix 3 - Budget 2022/23 

 

Contact Details 
 
Assistant Director: Janene Cox OBE, Assistant Director – Culture, Rural 

and Safer Communities 
 

Report Author:   Nikki Mihajlovic 
Job Title:    Senior Finance Business Partner 
Telephone No.:   01785 854879 

E-Mail Address:   Nikola.Mihajlovic@staffordshire.gov.uk  

Page 10

mailto:Nikola.Mihajlovic@staffordshire.gov.uk


 

Joint Archives Service Appendix 1

Predicted Outturn Position 2021-2022

Current Actual Predicted Current Actual Predicted Current Actual Predicted Current Actual Predicted

Budget Expenditure Outturn Budget Expenditure Outturn Budget Expenditure Outturn Budget Expenditure Outturn

@ Feb-2022 @ Feb-2022 @ Feb-2022 @ Feb-2022

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Expenditure

Employees 302,800 250,950 278,246 272,360 205,523 273,236 144,100 104,831 125,801 719,260 561,305 677,283

Training 1,530 298 810 3,100 604 1,650 900 0 0 5,530 902 2,460

Transport 1,250 596 730 2,550 1,210 1,480 300 5 5 4,100 1,811 2,215

Supplies & Services 9,880 4,364 7,930 20,070 8,860 16,110 19,200 7,658 9,862 49,150 20,883 33,902

Transfer to Reserve 0 0 28,091 0 0 5,604 0 0 28,440 0 0 62,135

Total Expenditure 315,460 256,208 315,807 298,080 216,198 298,080 164,500 112,494 164,108 778,040 584,900 777,995

Income

Grants & Reimbursements 0 0 0 0 0 0 200 17 20 200 17 20

Sales 0 0 0 9,390 7,853 9,390 400 92 110 9,790 7,945 9,500

Fees & Charges 4,000 3,598 4,347 3,200 61 3,200 1,900 1,648 1,978 9,100 5,307 9,525

Miscellaneous 2,450 0 2,450 3,640 0 3,640 0 0 0 6,090 0 6,090

Total Income 6,450 3,598 6,797 16,230 7,914 16,230 2,500 1,757 2,108 25,180 13,269 25,135

Net Expenditure 309,010 252,610 309,010 281,850 208,284 281,850 162,000 110,737 162,000 752,860 571,631 752,860

Predicted Under/Overspend 0

Total for ServiceStaffordshire County Council Sites and 

Public Services

Core Services Stoke-on-Trent City Council Sites and 

Public Services

P
age 11





 

Staffordshire Stoke on Trent Total

County Council City Council

£ £ £

General Reserve

Balance brought forward 1 April 2021 270,013 96,295 366,308

2021/2022 Transactions

Lockdown Memories Project -1,125 -1,125

Air Conditioning - approved in 2019/2020 (On hold) 0 0

Subtotal (balance as at 31 March 2022) 268,888 96,295 365,183

Future Transactions

Staffordshire History Centre - match funding -251,000 -251,000

Forecast underspend in 2021/2022 - Sites & Public Services 30,193 31,942 62,135

Balance Available (as at 31 March 2022) 48,081 128,237 176,318

Acquisition Reserve

Balance brought forward 1 April 2021 57,542 0 57,542

2021/2022 Transactions

0

Subtotal (balance as at 31 March 2021) 57,542 0 57,542

Future Transactions

0

Balance Available (as at 31 March 2022) 57,542 0 57,542

Art Fund Grant - Minton

Balance brought forward 1 April 2021 0 10,301 10,301

2021/2022 Transactions

Art Fund Grant - Minton Archive 0

Subtotal (balance as at 31 March 2021) 0 10,301 10,301

Future Transactions

Balance Available (as at 31 March 2022) 0 10,301 10,301

Grand Total

Balance at 31 March 2021 326,430 106,596 433,026

Forecast Balance at 31 March 2022 105,623 138,538 244,161

Appendix 2

Joint Archives Reserves

Page 13





 

Joint Archives Service Appendix 3

Budget 2022-23

Expenditure

Employees 329,237 287,453 151,300 767,990

Training 1,587 3,223 900 5,710

Transport 1,280 2,600 300 4,180

Supplies & Services 11,045 33,345 19,200 63,590

Total Expenditure 343,150 326,620 171,700 841,470

Income

Grants & Reimbursements 0 0 200 200

Sales 0 9,570 400 9,970

Fees & Charges 0 22,570 1,900 24,470

Miscellaneous 2,490 3,710 0 6,200

Total Income 2,490 35,850 2,500 40,840

Net Expenditure 340,660 290,770 169,200 800,630

Funded by: Staffordshire 581,430 73%

Stoke-on-Trent 219,200 27%

800,630

Total for ServiceStaffordshire County Council Sites and 

Public Services

Core Services Stoke-on-Trenty City Council Sites and 

Public Services

££££

P
age 15





 

 
Local Members Interest 

N/A 

 

Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent Joint Archive 
Committee 

– Thursday 03 March 2022 
 

Review of Joint Agreement for Archive Services 
 

Recommendation(s)  

 
That the Committee approves: 
 

a. The proposed changes as set out in section 3 of this Report. 
 

b.  The amendments to the agreement are made and agreed in writing by 
both local authorities.  

 
c. That the next review of the agreement will take place at the February 

meeting of the Committee in 2025. 
 

Report of Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and 
Communities (Staffordshire County Council) and Director of 
Strategy and Resources (Stoke-on-Trent City Council) 

 
Reasons for Recommendations:  

 
 

1. The Joint Agreement for Archive Services enables Staffordshire County 
Council and Stoke-on-Trent City Council to discharge their functions with 

regard to archives through the Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Archive 
Service. The Joint Archives Committee exercises delegated powers in 
respect of archive functions in the County and the City within an annual 

budget approved annually by both authorities. The Agreement prescribes 
those functions and lays down the standing orders and financial 

procedures to which the Joint Committee is subject. 
 

2. The current Joint Agreement was reviewed by the Joint Archives 
Committee on 7 February 2019 and executed in July 2021. The duration 

of the Joint Agreement was for an initial three year period until 31 March 
2022 and will automatically extend every three years unless the 
provisions of the Joint Agreement are followed to terminate the 

Agreement. There is provision for termination by either authority at three 
years’ notice or by mutual agreement at any time.  

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



 

Proposed amendments to Joint Agreement 

3. Under clause 5 - Staffing, the job titles of officers in the two local 
authorities to be amended as follows: 

a. For Staffordshire County Council, the “Head of Archive 
Services” to be updated to “Head of Archives and Heritage”. 

b. For Stoke-on-Trent City Council, “Strategic Manager – 
Museums, Archives and Culture” to be updated to “Strategic 

Manager – Customer Services and Communities”. 
c. For Stoke-on-Trent City Council, “City Archivist” to be updated 

to “Archive Services Manager”. 

 
4. Under clause 8 - Financial, the job titles for the relevant corporate 

directors for the two authorities concerning finance to be amended as 
follows: 

a. Staffordshire County Council’s director updated to “Director of 
Corporate Services” 

b. Stoke-on-Trent City Council’s director updated to “Director of 
Strategy and Resources” 

 

 
5. In Appendix 4 of the agreement, the job title of the Archivist to the 

Committee to be updated to “Head of Archives and Heritage”. 
 

 
6. In Appendix 6, the job titles of the employee roles included within the 

core budget of the Core budget will be updated. For Staffordshire County 
Council this reflects the implementation of the new structure in May 2021 
and includes: Head of Archives and Heritage, Collections Manager, 

Engagement and Access Manager and Conservator. For Stoke -on-Trent 
City Council this includes: Archive Services Manager.  

 
7. The functions and operations of the Joint Agreement (sections 3 and 4) 

are unchanged. However, within the next three years Staffordshire 
Record Office will change to Staffordshire History Centre upon its 

completion.  
 

Next steps and future review 

 
8. The Joint Agreement is currently working well for both parties and at this 

time, save for as set out above, no further changes are required. 
 

9. Subject to approval by the Committee of the changes set out above, the 
legal officers of both authorities will arrange for the changes to be made 

to the agreement. The legal officers for both local authorities have 
recommended a review every three years to ensure the agreement 

reflects current arrangements for both parties.  

Page 18



 

 

Legal Implications 
 

The Joint Archives Agreement enables both local authorities to discharge 
their functions with regard to archives through the Staffordshire and Stoke-

on-Trent Archive Service. The proposed changes have been reviewed by 
both authorities’ legal officers.  

 
 
Resource and Value for Money Implications 

 
Under the Joint Agreement the Archive Service budget is agreed by the 

Joint Archives Committee. The joint service shares the conservation 
function and online catalogue providing value for money for both partners. 

Each authority funds the operation of its own sites within the agreement.  
 

Climate Change Implications 
 
The Joint Agreement does not specifically reference Climate Change. The 

provision of a joint service with a single online offer promotes a sustainable 
service.  

 

List of Background Documents/Appendices:  
 
Appendix 1 – Joint Archives Agreement  

 

Contact Details 
 
Assistant Director: Janene Cox, Assistant Director -Culture, Rural and 

Safer Communities. 
 

Report Author:   Joanna Terry 
Job Title:    Head of Archives and Heritage 

Telephone No.:   01785 278370 
E-Mail Address:  joanna.terry@staffordshire.gov.uk  

Page 19

mailto:joanna.terry@staffordshire.gov.uk




Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55





 

 
Local Members Interest 

If report is relevant to ALL Members, type 

‘N/A’ into table  

Insert Members Name and Electoral Division 

 

Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent Joint Archive 
Committee 

– Thursday 03 March 2022 
 

Staffordshire History Centre Update 
 

Recommendation(s)  

 
That the Committee: 

 
a. Notes the progress update and the amended timeline for the project. 

 
b.  Approves the public access model during the temporary closure of 

Staffordshire Record Office. 

 
c.  Delegates amendments to the public access model to the Cabinet 

Member for Communities. 
 

Report of Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and 
Communities (Staffordshire County Council) and Director of 

Strategy and Resources (Stoke on Trent City Council) 
 
Reasons for Recommendations:  

 
 

1. The National Lottery Heritage Fund (Heritage Fund) granted permission 
to start the Staffordshire History Centre project on 8 November 2021. At 

the meeting of the Joint Archives Committee on 11 November the 
timeline for the project and temporary closure of Staffordshire Record 

Office was approved. This report brings an update on progress, amended 
timeline, and public access model for the access to collections during the 
temporary closure.   

 
Progress update 

 
2.  The first stage tender for the construction contractor was advertised 

from December 2021-January 2022. Only one viable tender was received 
and after discussion with the Heritage Fund it was agreed to terminate 

this tender and readvertise. Feedback indicated that the timing of the 
advert and lack of awareness of the project had resulted in fewer bids. 

 

Page 57

Agenda Item 6



 

3. The construction tender has been readvertised and will include a bidders’ 

day on 7 March to invite potential contractors to learn more about the 
project. Proactive promotion of the project to potential contractors has 

been undertaken and there is now greater interest in the tender. 
 

4. RIBA stage 4 design work on the new strongrooms, redesign of 
Staffordshire Record Office, Covered Courtyard link, and restoration and 

conversion of the William Salt Library is approximately 85% complete. 
Tender information is due to be issued to the Quantity Surveyor in mid-
March.  Stage 4 work on the green pedestrian walkway from North Walls 

to Eastgate Street is 70% complete.  
 

5. ‘Pre Construct Archaeology’ completed archaeological site investigations 
at the end of January 2022. Evidence of 20th century, Victorian and some 

medieval activity was found. The interim report is due to be submitted 
to the design team and a You Tube video has been produced about the 

excavations. A building recording level two scheme has been agreed for 
the William Salt Library listed building.   

 

6. The William Salt Library collection is being cleaned, packed and moved 
to temporary storage. This work is supported by staff and volunteers 

working together. Two volunteers are also working on cataloguing the 
collection. Nine volunteers and four staff have been trained in 

conservation cleaning.  
 

7. The Case for the Ordinary Exhibition on Staffordshire Asylums was 
launched on 12 January 2022 at the Museum of Cannock Chase. Thirty-
three people attended the first face to face launch of an exhibition by the 

service since the COVID-19 pandemic. The exhibition will tour the county 
and return to the History Centre with extended content once the centre 

is open.  
 

 
8. Two hundred Enclosure Award Maps are due to be digitised in March and 

one volunteer has started digitising the McCann photograph collection. 
 

9. Key stakeholders have been contacted to establish the Staffordshire 

History Network. The network and project will be launched at the 
Staffordshire History Day on 7 May. This will be an online event due to 

venue numbers still being restricted at the time of booking. The event 
will be supplemented by behind the scenes tours of collection stores. Two 

museum store tours have already been delivered.  
 

10. One university work placement has commenced. A collaborative PhD 
student has started work on creative writing inspired by collections 

Page 58



 

relating to black history. The academic partnership with Keele University 

is being established for delivery of adult learners short courses. 
 

11. The first progress report and grant claim will be submitted to the 
Heritage Fund at the end of March. Current spend is £55,180.00 with 

further commitments before 31 March. Total spend for the first claim will 
be reported at the next committee meeting in June.  

 
 
Amended timeline 

 
12. There is currently just over three months’ delay to the programme 

and timeline due to restarting the construction tender. The tender has 
been readvertised as quickly as possible. Staffing changes within 

Staffordshire Archive and Heritage Service have also delayed 
procurement of digital, evaluation and marketing work. The recent 

recruitment to the Engagement and Access Manager role will enable the 
service to catch up on procurement work. 
 

13. Recruitment of project staff has been delayed ensuring posts are filled 
in line with the construction programme and schedule for opening of the 

History Centre. An updated key decisions timeline is at appendix one to 
this report.  

 
14. Work continues to review the use of the branding for the Staffordshire 

History Centre. Options for use of branding by both authorities will be 
brough to the June committee. 

 

Public access model during temporary closure 
 

15. At the November meeting of the Joint Archive Committee approval 
was given to temporarily close Staffordshire Record Office with the date 

to be agreed. The Record Office will close from 11 March 2022. This is to 
enable preparatory surveys to take place prior to the construction of the 

Staffordshire History Centre. The access model is attached at appendix 
two to this report.  
 

16. Staff and volunteers will move to temporary premises during the 
closure and from late spring we plan to provide physical access for 

statutory legal requirements and certain time-limited projects, where 
needs cannot be met through copying. Staff will have some limited 

access to the strongrooms at different stages during the project and will 
be offering a copying service where possible. The access model will be 

reviewed on a regular basis and updates will be published on our website 
and social media channels. The service will continue to respond to 

enquiries by email.  

Page 59



 

 

  
Legal Implications 

 
The public access model has been developed in consultation with The 

National Archives to comply with access for statutory records. Advice has 
been received from Staffordshire County Council legal services concerning 

access to records supporting rights of ways enquiries. 
 
Resource and Value for Money Implications 

 
Procurement of goods and services for the project complies with 

Staffordshire County Council’s procurement framework.  
 

Climate Change Implications 
 

The project balances online access and physical access to services and 
collections to offer options for remote use and not necessarily travel to 
multiple locations. Any new buildings will be compliant with modern 

standards for energy efficiency and minimise impacts on climate change. 
Opportunities to attract additional finding to increase energy efficiency will 

be pursued. The project includes elements to improve the outcomes for 
wildlife and the environment. 

 
 

List of Background Documents/Appendices:  
 

Appendix 1 Timeline of key decisions 
 

Appendix 2 Access during temporary closure of Staffordshire Record Office 
 

Contact Details 
 

Assistant Director: Janene Cox, Assistant Director – Culture, Rural and 
Safer Communities 

 
Report Author:   Joanna Terry 
Job Title:    Head of Archives and Heritage 

Telephone No.:   01785 278370 
E-Mail Address:  joanna.terry@staffordshire.gov.uk  

Page 60

mailto:joanna.terry@staffordshire.gov.uk


Appendix 1 SHC key decisions 3.3.2022

Staffordshire History Centre Project
SCC Property Committee

Joint Archive Service Committee Key Decisions

William Salt Library Trust Updated: V1. 15.10.2021
SCC Cabinet

National Lottery Heritage Fund

DECISIONS SRO Closed 

Oct

2021

Nov

2021

Dec

2021

Jan

2022

Feb

2022

Mar

2022

Apr

2022

May

2022

Jun

2022

Jul

2022

Aug

2022

Service operation

Temporary closure of WSL

Temporary closure of SRO

Design of new website

Approve opening hours for SHC

Confirm remote service delivery model during 

construction phase

Reopening of SHC

Legal agreements

Joint Venture Agreement for Delivery Phase

Transfer of courtyard land

Surrender WSL lease

Enter into new  lease for ground floor of WSL

Amendments to Joint Agreement

Marketing and promotion

Adoption of SHC branding

Approve plans for reopening/launch

Finance

Changes to funding

S
ta

rt

Capital Works/ Construction/Fit out 

WSL closed

2021/2022 2022/2023

P
age 61



Appendix 1 SHC key decisions 3.3.2022

Policies and plans

Joint Collections Statement & associated policies

Access Policy

Conservation Policy

Digital Engagement Policy

Audience Development Plan

Disposal Policy

Local Studies Policy

Review of 2015-25 vision

Evaluation

P
age 62



Appendix 1 SHC key decisions 3.3.2022

Sep

2022

Oct

2022

Nov

2022

Dec

2022

Jan

2023

Feb

2023

Mar

2023

Apr

2023

May

2023

Jun

2023

Jul

2023

Aug

2023

Sep

2023

Oct

2023

Nov

2023

Dec

2023

Capital Works/ Construction/Fit out New SHC opens

2022/2023 2023/2024

P
age 63



Appendix 1 SHC key decisions 3.3.2022

P
age 64



Appendix 1 SHC key decisions 3.3.2022

Jan

2024

Feb

2024

Mar

2024

Apr

2024

May

2024

Jun

2024

Jul

2024

Aug

2024

Sep

2024

Oct

2024

Nov

2024

Dec

2024

Jan

2025

Feb

2025

Mar

2025

Apr

2025

New SHC opens

2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026

P
age 65



Appendix 1 SHC key decisions 3.3.2022

P
age 66



Appendix 1 SHC key decisions 3.3.2022

May

2025

Jun

2025

Jul

2025

Aug

2025

Sep

2025

Oct

2025

Nov

2025

Dec

2025

Jan

2026

Feb

2026

Mar

2026

Apr

2026

May

2026

New SHC opens

E
n

d

2025/2026

P
age 67



Appendix 1 SHC key decisions 3.3.2022

P
age 68



 

Access during temporary closure of Staffordshire Record Office 

As a result of a successful application to the National Lottery Heritage Fund 

Staffordshire Record Office (SRO) will be extended, remodelled, and 

refurbished to create the Staffordshire History Centre. 

Building work will begin on site in March 2022 and it is anticipated that this 

will continue for a period of twelve to eighteen months. This is a high-profile 

project which Cabinet approved and allocated capital funding to on 19 May 

2019 and 17 February 2021.  

The onsite service will close temporarily as construction will take place at 

SRO, the courtyard and William Salt Library at the same time and the site 

will not be safe for staff and public access.  

The Archives and Heritage team will relocate to an alternative base within 

Stafford town centre adjacent to SRO. Whilst the team relocates there will 

be a short period of a few weeks where there will be no access until the 

team are in their new base. During the construction period there will be 

very limited access to collections until the team has moved equipment and 

furniture. Access as outlined below will resume as soon as possible. 

The Archives and Heritage team will be permitted access once a week to 

retrieve documents for volunteer projects which form part of the History 

Centre funded project and to meet priority access enquiries. There may be 

periods when no access is permitted, for example when the new 

strongrooms are joined to the existing ones. As such a limited service will 

be provided within the context of the legislation which governs access to 

archive collections held by Staffordshire County Council.  

Onsite access 

During the temporary closure provision will be made for onsite access for 

members of the public and Staffordshire County Council staff to consult 

original collections. This will be available one day per week for enquiries 

which are categorised as priority access for the reasons listed below. 

Documents and spaces will need to be booked two weeks in advance. 

The categories for priority access will include: 

 Legal access, rights of way, deeds service, planning and site 

investigation, property ownership/residence, ancient hedgerows, 

public inquiries, criminal and inquest investigations, documentation 

to support religious ceremonies. 

 Time specific deadlines meeting funding requirements and academic 

submissions where this cannot be delayed. 

 Other enquiries assessed on a case-by-case basis to cover 

exceptional circumstances. 

Page 69



 

Remote service 

During the Covid-19 pandemic the Archive and Heritage Service has 

continued to provide a remote service prior to reopening onsite access as 

soon as it was permitted. This model will be continued during the temporary 

closure to answer enquiries about collections, direct people to the online 

offer, provide copies where appropriate and possible, and prioritise 

requests for onsite access.  

Online access to key collections is available through:  

 Staffordshire Past Track (tithe maps, photographs and Staffordshire 

Views) 

 Find My Past available free at Staffordshire Libraries (parish registers, 

wills, marriage bonds) 

 Staffordshire Name Indexes to request copies or transcripts from 

online indexes of a range of collections 

 Gateway to the Past is the online catalogue which lists the collections 

held by the service 

 Historic Ordnance Survey maps online through National Library of 

Scotland 

 

The Archive and Heritage team will also be managing and delivering a four-

year activity programme which includes volunteer projects, cataloguing and 

digitising collections, oral history and collecting from minority groups, 

creating the Staffordshire History Network, training and developing 

knowledge of staff and volunteers, researching creating temporary 

exhibitions.  

Implementation and review 

This draft public service model has been shared with The National Archives 

(the archive sector lead body) and will be reported to the Joint Archives 

Committee for their consideration in March 2022. The model will be 

reviewed with the Committee during the project as part of the progress 

updates on the Staffordshire History Centre project.  

 

Joanna Terry 

Head of Archives and Heritage 

Page 70

http://www.staffspasttrack.org.uk/
https://www.search.staffspasttrack.org.uk/search.aspx?SearchType=2&PageIndex=1&ThemeID=774
https://www.views.staffspasttrack.org.uk/search.aspx
https://www.views.staffspasttrack.org.uk/search.aspx
https://www.findmypast.co.uk/articles/world-records/search-all-uk-records/special-collections/the-staffordshire-and-diocese-of-lichfield-collections
https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/Libraries/Library-services/Free-online-resources.aspx
https://www.staffsnameindexes.org.uk/
https://www.staffsnameindexes.org.uk/
https://maps.nls.uk/os/
https://maps.nls.uk/os/


 

 
Local Members Interest 

N/A 

 

Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent Joint Archive 
Committee 

– Thursday 03 March 2022 
 
Predicted performance outturn 2021/2022 

 
Recommendation(s)  

 
That the Committee: 

 
a. Notes predicted performance outturn for the service. 

 
Report of Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and 

Communities (Staffordshire County Council) and Director of 
Strategy and Resources (Stoke on Trent City Council) 
 

Reasons for Recommendations:  
 

 
1. The Joint Archive Service works to a three-year planning cycle. In 2015 

a ten year vision for the service was approved with regular reviews. The 
current Forward Plan was reviewed and approved on 25 February 2021. 

An annual service delivery plan is produced by the service to identify key 
workstreams and monitor progress towards targets.   
 

Context 
 

2. The predicted performance outturn reflects the impact of the COVID-19 
pandemic on the Joint Archive Service. Throughout 2021/22 the service 

continued to be impacted by the national lockdown from January – 13th 
April 2021. Staffordshire Record Office reopened on 13th April with 

seating capacity reduced by 75% until October when two more seats 
were added. The volunteer programme was delivered remotely until late 
summer when a phased return of volunteers to site began. Events were 

initially recovered online followed by limited onsite events and talks with 
reduced capacity. Initially visitor confidence was reduced, with 68% 

occupancy which has now risen to 99% in early 2022. This increase is in 
part due to the expected Staffordshire Record Office temporary closure 

from 11 March. The service has also experienced staffing shortages due 
to retirement of key staff following the service restructure.  

 

Page 71

Agenda Item 7



 

3. Stoke on Trent City Archives was only able to reopen following the 

2020/21 national lockdowns on 12th May 2021. This was due to staffing 
shortages after the retirement of three staff in 2020/21. The service 

seating capacity was reduced by 84% and the service experienced lower 
occupancy rates. The service has just reintroduced onsite volunteers at 

lower numbers. This has significantly impacted on visitor numbers to the 
service.  

 
Service demand 1: Active Partnership 
 

4.  Good progress has been made in this area with work progressing to 
establish the development trust. Following the pandemic recovery of the 

volunteer programme has been more successful than anticipated. 
Partnership working with universities has also resumed on several 

projects as COVID-19 restrictions were eased.  
 

5. The two service friends groups have resumed their activity. Planning 
work for a new Staffordshire History Network is well advanced. Support 
for the New Vic Theatre archive has not begun due to meetings not taking 

place during the pandemic.  
 

6. Performance measures of volunteer hours are expected to be down on 
pre-COVID numbers however they are recovering wellwell. Satisfaction 

rating remains high at 99.5%. 
 

Service demand 2: sustainability and resilience 
 

7. The implementation of the new staffing structure for the County Council 

part of the service has enabled a balanced budget to be delivered with a 
forecast underspend across the service. Fundraising has continued with 

an application to the Wolfson Foundation passing the first stage.  
 

8. Vacancies across the service has delayed the delivery of reviews of 
policies for the service. This has also impacted on recruitment to project 

posts.  
 

9. COVID-19 recovery plans have been successfully implemented and risk 

assessments completed. The staff training programme for the new 
structure has been delivered.   

 
Service demand 3: Diversified users, stakeholders and collections 

 
10. Work to engage users and stakeholders has continued to be delivered 

online. Some in person talks have now started to be delivered however 
attendances remain low compared to pre-COVID-19 figures.  

 

Page 72



 

11. Partnership events have been re-established with universities and 

one placement has been delivered. 
 

12. Work has commenced to procure consultants to deliver the History 
Centre activities.  

 
Service demand 4: Share knowledge across the sector 

 
13. The service has continued to participate in regional networks and 

present at conferences. Some programmes of work have been delayed 

due to staffing vacancies.  
 

Service demand 5: Increased online activity 
 

14. Work has continued on  the digitisation of collections added to 
Staffordshire Past Track and Staffordshire Name Indexes websites. Work 

has begun to procure the new service website. A review of social media 
has been completed. 

 

15. Work to train staff in digital preservation has been delivered through 
Archives West Midlands but delayed in implementation in the service due 

to vacancies in the team.  
 

Performance targets 
 

16. Key performance statistics have been provided up to December 
2021/January 2022. COVID-19 restrictions have impacted upon  use and 
engagement with the service. Volunteer numbers are lower, 

howeverrecovery has been stronger than anticipated. The service has a 
balanced budget and forecast underspend. The online presence of the 

service has continued to grow.  
 

  
Legal Implications 

 
The work of the Archive Service is governed by the Joint Agreement and 
other legislation to enable both authorities to meet their legal obligations.  

 
Resource and Value for Money Implications 

 
The service has a forecast underspend due to staff vacancies for 2021/22.         

 
Climate Change Implications 

 

Page 73



 

The work of the service balances online access and physical access to 

services and collections to offer options for remote use and not necessarily 
travel to multiple locations.  

 
 

List of Background Documents/Appendices:  
 

Appendix 1 Service delivery plan and predicted outturn 2021/2022 
 

 

Contact Details 
 
Assistant Director: Janene Cox, Assistant Director – Culture, Rural and 

Safer Communities 
 

Report Author:   Joanna Terry 
Job Title:    Head of Archives and Heritage 

Telephone No.:   01785 278370 
E-Mail Address:  joanna.terry@staffordshire.gov.uk  

Page 74

mailto:joanna.terry@staffordshire.gov.uk


Archive and Heritage Service Delivery Plan 2021/2022 
 
Service Demand 1: The Archives and Heritage Service is developed by an Active Partnership between Councils, users, depositors, 

partners, volunteers in all areas of the service including: funding, management and delivery. 
 
 By 2025: 

 Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent Councils will see the service as having the lead role to play in the county and city, caring for their  
historically-valuable collections, and enabling their enjoyment and use by residents and visitors alike, supporting health and wellbeing outcomes.  

 The work of the service will be viewed as relevant to a wide range of organisations and individuals through joint delivery and 

commissioning of projects. 

 Fundraising by stakeholders has increased significantly. 

Key service delivery 
themes 

Work streams RAG 
rating 

Predicted outturn 

A Existing Partnerships 

 

Implement Development Trust with: William Salt Library Trust, 

Keele University, Friends, Depositors 
 
 

Joint delivery of Museum Development work with Ironbridge 
Gorge and review future programme 

 

 
Marches Network 
 

University partnerships: 
Keele University – collaborative PhDs, Victoria County History 
(VCH)  group, Paupers papers project group 

 
 
 

Nottinghamshire University – Place Names project 
 
Liverpool University – CLANDAGE project on climate change 

landscapes and heritage 
 
 

 
 
Library and Arts Service & St Mary’s to reopen the HAP   

delivered by them + volunteers 
 
 

Support Friends committees to and their fundraising events  

Green 

 
 
 

Green 
 
 

 
Green 
 

 
Green 
 

 
 
 

Green 
 
Green 

(complete) 
 
 

 
 
Green 

 
 
 

Green 

Three trustees have been appointed which enables 

the development trust to be registered with the 
Charity Commission. 
 

Work programme is on track with involvement scaled 
back to take account of new service structure and 
priorities. 

 
The services continues participation in this network 
and holds funds on its behalf. 

 
The volunteers for the VCH and Pauper projects 
have returned to site. The Asylums project 

collaborative PhD continues and one creative writing 
PhD began this year both are from Keele University. 
 

This volunteer group was relaunched in Nov with an 
online study session.  
Outreach activities have been delivered in 

partnership with the University. 
 
 

 
The HAP reopened in June on a booking basis. 
Library staff been trained. Volunteers are being 

recruited to support its running.  
Both friends groups supporting the Archive Service 
(FoSSA) and William Salt Library (FWSL) have held 

online AGMs. FoSSA has also planned a visit to the 

P
age 75

https://www.ukclimateresilience.org/projects/clandage-building-climate-resilience-through-community-landscapes-and-cultural-heritage/


 
 

 
 

 museum collection store and acquired a grant to 
support digitisation of Enclosure Maps.   

B New Partnerships Develop Staffordshire History Network 
 

 
 
Supporting New Victoria Theatre Archive (advising and on 

committee).  
 
 

 

Green 
 

 
 
Green 

 

Research and stakeholder engagement has been 
completed and the Network will be ready to launch in 

May 2022. 
 
Stoke Archive Services Manager anticipates being 

invited to April 2022 meeting.   
 
 

C Volunteer programme Recover volunteer programme – see Recovery Plan 
 
Promote volunteer opportunities through SCC/VCSE networks 

 

Green A phased recovery of volunteer programme 
commenced in July with the return of 70 volunteers. 
We are at capacity onsite. Two volunteers were 

supported to record a video about their experience 
with the service.  

Performance Measures Number of volunteer hours given to the Service  2,449 to Jan. 
Customer satisfaction rating 99.5%  (97.5 20/21)  
 

 

Service Demand 2: Archives and Heritage Service has been re-shaped and redesigned to encourage resilience, new ways of working 
and refocusing its delivery to the needs of users.  

 
By 2025: 

 The service is housed in buildings which are accessible, welcoming and comfortable. The customer experience is warm, 

welcoming and inspiring. Users are easily able to use and engage with collections and share their knowledge.  

 The service cares for and develops collections which reflect present and past life in Staffordshire and Stoke and are appraised to 

ensure they meet our collection policies. 

 All collections are stored in compliance with sector standards. 

Key service delivery 
themes 

Key workstreams RAG rating Predicted outturn 

A. Financially secure and new 

structures embedded 
 

Implement new staffing structures and new staff roles across the 

service and establish new teams 
 
Deliver balanced budget and develop plan to fund incremental 

drift for Archives and Heritage 
 
 

Evaluate SHC development phase and deliver virtual site visit 
 

Green 

 
 
Green 

 
 
 

Green 
 

New structured implemented from 1 May, with 

ongoing training to embed it. 
 
Balanced budget with forecast underspend of 

£0.028m. Plan in place to fund future increments. 
 
 

Evaluation completed and virtual site visit delivered 
May 2021. 

P
age 76



 
 

 
Develop matched funding applications for SHC  
 

 
Deliver strategic support for Sandwell Archives  
 

 
Green 
 

 
Green 
 

 
One funding application submitted to Wolfson 
Foundation which has passed first stage. 

 
Support has been scaled back to quarterly 
meetings.  

B. Service accreditations met 

 

Submit review of archive accreditation return 

 
Submit museum accreditation return  
 

Review policies at JAC: 
WSL Collections Policy 
Joint Collections Statement for SHC 

  

Amber 

 
Green 
 

 
Amber 

In progress due March 2022 delayed by staff 

vacancy. 
Due April 2022. 
 

 
Delayed by staff vacancy 

C. Collections management 
 

Recruit and induct new conservator 
 
Review annual archive conservation and preservation 

programmes 
 
 

Update and test Emergency Plans 
 
 

Deliver Museum Conservation Plan and Documentation Plan 
 
 

Update Museum locations in new stores 
 
Prepare WSL collection for relocation 

 
 
Participate in QB storage management group 

 
Prepare for possible return of carriages from Shugborough 
 

 
Recruit Project Cataloguer 
 

Green 
 
Green 

 
 
 

Green 
 
 

Green 
 
 

Green 
 
Amber 

 
 
Green 

 
Green 
 

 
Amber 
 

 

Completed and in post from July 2021.  
 
Programme reviewed to focus on preservation and 

repackaging collections due to move. Reviewed 
pest management.  
 

Emergency response training delivered by Harwell 
in Nov 21. Plan being reviewed. 
 

One painting conserved and documentation in 
progress. 
 

98.05% complete 
 
Repackaging work supported by additional staff 

hours and volunteers. With removals booked in Mar-
Apr. 
Group meetings attended. 

 
Licence extended. Plan for removal has been 
discussed with NT officers. 

 
Delayed due to staff vacancy and construction 
procurement delay. Planned for April 2022. 

D. Collections development  Review reappraisal and deaccessioning programme across 
service 
 

Disposals from museum collections 
 
 

Green 
 
 

Green 
 
 

Review completed with items identified for disposal. 
 
 

Review completed with items identified for disposal. 
 
 

P
age 77



 
 

Identify collections suitable for back-cataloguing by volunteers 
or for project work 
 

 
Deliver annual Collections Development work (See Collections 
Team plan for details) 

 
Deliver TNA Scanning for Staffordshire project 
 

 
Deliver Rugeley Power Station project  
 

Assess Tamworth Castle collection 
 
 

Lockdown Memories collecting, COVID War Diary oral history 
and digital collecting 
 

 

Green 
 
 

 
Green 
 

 
Amber 
 

 
Amber 
 

Green 
 
 

Amber 
 

Evode group identified to catalogue a collection. 
 
 

 
Plan priorities on target. 
 

 
Delayed due to Covid-19 restrictions and local 
history groups not meeting. Planned to deliver this 

summer. 
Job advertised but later than planned. 
 

Work completed with collection remaining at 
Tamworth Castle.  
 

Job advertised but later than planned. 
 

E. Manage our buildings to 
ensure they are safe, more cost-
effective and sustainable 

 

Deliver Recovery Plan and ensure buildings are COVID secure 
 
Review health and safety risk assessments  

 
Maintain our buildings and monitor annual servicing 
arrangements with Property Services 

 

Green 
 
Green 

 
 
Green 

Phase 1 and phase 2 plans delivered with ongoing 
monitoring. 
Risk Assessments updated to reflect COVID 

restrictions.  
 
Buildings continued to be maintained.  

F. Training and development of 
staff and volunteers 

Implement cross-service training programme to support 
restructure 
 

Induction of new staff 
 
In-house training about collections and new accessions across 

service  
 
Implement We Talk annual review conversations and identify 

training and development needs 
 

Green 
 
 

Green 
 
Green 

 
 
Green 

Internal training plan on new roles delivered. Basic 
Archive Skills training completed by 4 people 
Induction of new conservator completed. 

See above.  
 
Implemented.  

 
 
Implemented. 

Performance Measures Percentage of collections with at least a collection-level description online: Annual figure calculated at year end 
Number of documents issued: 3710 to end Dec above target compared to 2020/21 

Number of objects loaned: 4321 to end Dec above target compared to 2020/21 
Balanced budget: £0.28m underspend 
Accreditation status: Due for assessment 

 

P
age 78



 
 

Service Demand 3: Archives and Heritage Service has diversified its users, stakeholders and collections. This has resulted in 
increased visibility and understanding of the service by the public and increased levels of new users. People are proud of th e 

Staffordshire History Centre 
 

 By 2025: 
 The service is THE focus for the history and collections of Staffordshire. 

 Collections have diversified. 

 The Service has at least retained its current numbers of researchers in the searchroom and promoted the use of original documents, 

while increasing the number of users attending activities, browsing facilities and using the service online. 

 The service has built on its support amongst local communities and increased the membership of Friends organisations and their 

active involvement with the Service. 

 Public awareness of the diverse themes and treasures within the collection has grown, including that of the William Salt Library 

Service Delivery 
Activities 

Key Milestones RAG 
rating 

Predicted outturn 

A. Deliver a rejuvenated public 
service enabling people to 
engage with the collections 
across a range of subjects and 

disciplines 

Recover public service  - see Recovery Plan 
 
Support Staffordshire Day 
 

Support Local & Community History Month 

Green 
 
Green 
 

Green 

Public service recovered, see above. 
 
Online talks and social media delivered. 
 

Social media and two in person talks delivered. 
Meaningful Mementoes online launched. 

B Engage new audiences with 
the service 

Deliver SHC Activity Plan 
 

Green 
 

 

Planning in progress to begin delivery 2022 - 2025 

C. Marketing and promotion 
 

Deliver Digital Engagement Plan and assess new channels  
 
 

Deliver SHC Marketing Plan 
 

Green 
 
 

Green 

Social media delivered and reviewed 
 
 

Work to procure marketing consultant, delivery 
planned from late spring. 

D. Online and onsite exhibitions 
 

Develop digital exhibition ‘Meaningful Mementoes’  
 

 
Deliver Asylum exhibition 

Green 
 

 
Green 
 

 

Meaningful Mementoes online exhibition launched on 
wordpress. 

 
Pop up exhibition launched at Burntwood Library – 
with main exhibition launched 12 Jan 22. 

 

E. Access to William Salt Library 
collections 
 

Provide access via Staffordshire Record Office 
 
Review WSL access processes to support delivery via new 

public service team 

Green 
 
Green 

 

Access delivered until December 2021 when 
collection was closed for removal preparations. 
Processed reviewed and training delivered. 

P
age 79



 
 

F. Learning  
 

Deliver Learning Plan as set out in the Activity Plan 
 
 

Support University and school students on professional 
placements 
 

Deliver two partnership study days 
 
Maintain Place-name volunteer group and support AHRC bid  

Green 
 
 

Green 
 
 

Green 
 
Green 

 

Work planned for delivery from Nov 2024 students 
requests. Got two other placements planned.  
 

1 university placement being delivered. 
 
 

One VCH study day delivered and two activities with 
Liverpool University 
Volunteer group relaunched in Nov 2021 

G. Access and equalities 
 

Deliver SHC Access Strategy 
 
 

 

Green Work planned for 2024 
 
 

 

H. Engagement with cross-
disciplinary exhibitions 

Deliver SHC Interpretation Plan 
 
Support loans at Shugborough Hall with National Trust 

 
Deliver loans programme in consultation with partners and 
stakeholders 

 

Green 
 
Green 

 
Green 

Procurement process started 
 
Loans ongoing.  

 
Loans programme ongoing with items lent for 
exhibition to other museums. 

Performance Measures Number of talks and events delivered by Service: 7 
Number of attendees at all events and talks delivered by Service: 152 
Number of exhibition appearances: 7 

 
 

Service Demand 4: The Archives and Heritage Service shares knowledge on new ways of working with other services  
 
 By 2025: 

 The service acts as a national focus for sector knowledge in active partnerships, including volunteering.  This has 

 involved partnerships with the National Archives, Arts Council England and the Archives and Records Association. 

 The service supports other museums and organisations which hold objects and archives in their collections to 

ensure they are secure, accessible and sustainable. 

 

Service Delivery 

Activities 

Key Milestones RAG 

rating 

Predicted outturn 

A. Sharing knowledge with the 
wider archive and museum 
sector 

Participate in Archives West Midlands  
 
 

Contribution of papers to sector conferences and training 
seminars 

Green 
 
 

Green 
 

Three presentations delivered for AWM. 
 
 

One paper delivered at DCDC conference 
 

P
age 80



 
 

 
Develop case studies to share at sector events 
 

Develop Museum Development Officer role in partnership 
with Ironbridge 

 
Amber 
 

Green 

 
None identified 
 

Delivered 

B.  Developing a close 
relationship with voluntary 

sector organisations 

Round table with other SCC services to promote volunteering 
programme 

 
Set up stakeholder group to shape design and programming 
pending external funding 

Amber 
 

 
Amber 
 

Not happened yet 
 

 
Delayed whilst waiting for new Engagement & Access 
Manager to start. 

 

C. Reviewing and developing 
its income generation 
programme. 

 

Annual review of income, fees and charges 
 
Review existing commercial online offer and plan for 

additional content 
 
Deliver SHC project Business plan 

Green 
 
Green 

 
 
Green 

Complete 
 
Planned for 2022/3 

 
 
Planned for 2022/3 

D. Supporting and advising 

heritage groups across the 
county on their development 
 

Museum Development Officer engagement programme 

 
Museum mentor for two museums to maintain accreditation  
 

Support and advise groups on caring for their collections 

Green 

 
Green 
 

Green 

See reporting above, ongoing 

 
Ongoing  
 

Ongoing 

Performance Measures Number of organisations actively engaged with in an advisory capacity: 174 to end Dec 

 

 
Service Demand 5: Archives and Heritage Service has increased its activity online and is delivering more services online. 
 

 By 2025:  
 The service has a presence on key sites beyond its own website, delivering regular content to users on the sites 

they use frequently 

 More services are delivered online and more collections are available online 

 Born digital archives are properly managed and accessible 

 

Service Delivery 
Activities 

Key Milestones RAG 
rating 

Predicted outturn 

A. Develop new online 

platform 
 

Commission new website 

 

Green 

 

Commenced procurement paperwork 

 

P
age 81



 
 

B. Deliver new online content 
 

Staffs Name Indexes – add new/extended indexes 
 
Staffordshire Pasttrack – add 750 new images 

Green 
 
Green 

Two indexes added 
 
1,080 images added so far by volunteers 

C. Align onsite and digital 
services  

 

Continue to reconfigure public service delivery to align with 
online offer and streamline processes 

Green Review of processes post new structure, still ongoing. 

D. Provide access to born 
digital archives. 
 

Internal training on current digital archives provision 
 
Progress regional work with Archives West Midlands 

 
Implement Digital Preservation software 

Amber 
 
Green 

 
Amber 

Due to be delivered 
 
Ongoing 

 
Due to be delivered 

E. Digitisation programme  Implement programme identified in Activity Plan Green Funding acquired by FoSSA to digitise Enclosure maps. 
McCann photograph collection being digitised 

F. Social media 

 

Review use of social media accounts in light of audience 

research 
 
Introduce new branding to social media 

 
 

Green 

 
 
Amber 

 
 

Social media has been reviewed, Instagram account 

paused. Increased use of You Tube 
 
Further review of branding required by JAC. 

Performance Measures Visits to Service websites (all online offer) 237,860 to end Dec  
Facebook reach A&H 120,726; PastTrack 901,925 (to end Dec)  
Twitter impressions A&H 254,300; Minton 51,537  (to end Dec) 
Instagram likes  A&H 150 (to end Dec, no posts since July 2021) 
YouTube  A&H 6,165 impressions (to end Dec) 

 

P
age 82



 

 
Local Members Interest 

N/A 

 

Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent Joint Archive 
Committee 

– Thursday 03 March 2022 
 

Disposals from Staffordshire Archive Collections 
 

Recommendation(s)  

 
a. That the committee approves the transfer and disposal of archive 

collections identified through the reappraisal process. 

 
Report of Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and 

Communities (Staffordshire County Council) and Director of 
Strategy and Resources (Stoke on Trent City Council) 

 
Reasons for Recommendations:  

 
1. Following reappraisal of two collections held at Staffordshire Record 

Office several items for transfer or disposal have been identified. 
 

2. In accordance with the Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent Archive Service’s 

Collections Development Policy, permission must be sought from the 
Joint Archive Committee before any item is transferred or disposed of 

from the collection. 
 

Background 
 

3. Reviews of collections take place to ensure that our collections continue 
to meet the criteria of the Collections Development Policy. Staffordshire 
and Stoke on Trent Archive Service regularly reviews collections to 

ensure we are making best use of archival storage for the care of existing 
collections and to enable further accessions to be received. 

 
4. This report covers recent reappraisals of two collections completed by 

the Collections Officers which has identified material to be transferred or 
destroyed. 

 
5. Firstly, duplicate copy minutes collected by the County Clerk’s 

department, 1950s (collection ref: C/C/L/1-24) and miscellaneous 

minutes and printed material for the Stoke on Trent City Council area 
(collection ref: C/C/L/25).  One box is to be transferred to Stoke on Trent 

City Archives (C/C/L/25), one box of Wednesbury Borough Council 

Page 83

Agenda Item 8



 

minutes to be transferred to Sandwell Archives as agreed (C/C/L/22/1-

6), and 25 boxes to be destroyed. See Appendix 1. 
 

6. Secondly, a miscellaneous collection from the offices of George Horne & 
Son, auctioneers (collection ref: 735 part, sections 4/6/1-5 OS Maps and 

5/1 postcards).  The collection comprises rolls of Ordnance Survey maps 
for areas outside Staffordshire or duplicates of Staffordshire maps 

already held by the service. It also includes two boxes of postcards and 
photographs for places outside Staffordshire to be offered for transfer or 
to be destroyed if unwanted. See Appendix 2. 

 
7. This disposal process is in accordance with Staffordshire and Stoke on 

Trent Archive Service’s Collections Development Policy, reviewed 
December 2019. 

 
8.  The policy complies with Archive Service Accreditation UK standard for 

archive services and supports the Archive Service’s Terms and Conditions 
for the Deposit of Archives (last revised 2018) 

 

9. In accordance with Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Joint Archives 
Service’s Collections Development Policy it is the practice to offer 

collections to other services first and it is a principle of the policy that 
collections will not be sold. 

 
 

Legal Implications 
 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Joint Archives Service’s Collections 

Development Policy is the basis for enabling the removal of items from the 
collection. 

 
Resource and Value for Money Implications 

 
Funded by Staffordshire County Council.  This process will enable better 

care of the County Council’s Archive collections through better use of 
storage space, staff resources and conservation material resources.    
 

Climate Change Implications 
 

None applicable. 
 

List of Background Documents/Appendices:  
 

Appendix 1 - Appraisal and disposal assessment C-C-L 
Appendix 2 - Appraisal and disposal assessment 735pt 

Page 84



 

Contact Details 
 

Assistant Director: Janene Cox, Assistant Director – Culture, Rural and 
Safer Communities 

 

Report Author:   Chris Copp 
Job Title:    Collections Officer 

Telephone No.:   01785 895181 
E-Mail Address:  chris.copp@staffordshire.gov.uk 

Page 85





APPENDIX 1 
 

STAFFORDSHIRE AND STOKE ON TRENT ARCHIVE SERVICE 
 

REAPPRAISAL AND DISPOSAL RECORD SHEET 

 
 

PART ONE: COLLECTION INFORMATION 

 

Staffordshire Record Office 
 
Collection reference: C/C/L/1-25 

 
 
Collection title: 

Copy minutes of District Councils collected by the County Clerk’s department, 1950s 
(C/C/L/1-24); 

 
Stoke City Council year books, Education annual handbooks, Children’s Committee copy 

minutes, miscellaneous printed material for the Stoke on Trent City Council area 
(C/C/L/25) 
 

 
Date of deposit or donation: C/C/L/1-24, acquired by the County Clerk in the 1950s, not 

known at what point they came to the Archive Service; 
C/C/L/25 acquired in 1991 from the Chief Education Officer (Northern Area) and in 1996 
from the Director of Social Services 

 
 
Ownership: 

(indicate if owned by the Archive Service/governing body, privately owned by identified 
individual(s) or continuing organisation, or if current owner cannot be identified) 

 
Staffordshire County Council 

 
 
Legal obligations and conditions of acquisition/grants: 

(indicate whether under Acceptance in Lieu scheme, or subject to purchase or 
cataloguing grant, etc. Also check if there is a record of any previous appraisal process) 

 
None 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
File in appropriate deposit file, and Freedom of Information Legislation file 

Page 87



PART TWO: APPRAISAL INFORMATION 
 
Date of appraisal: 3 July 2017, reviewed 4 November 2020 

 
Appraisal decisions: 

 
A. Records to be returned to depositor or transferred: 

 
1. Quantity: 1 box or part thereof (C/C/L/25, Stoke on Trent) 

 
Reasons: These records are within the collecting area of Stoke on Trent City Archives. Both 
batches of records within this reference were transferred internally before the official 

creation of the Archives in 1997, and could in practice have been offered to the Archives in 
1997 or soon after. 

This series is to be transferred to Stoke on Trent City Archives. If any items are not required 
by that office, they will be duplicates and will have no additional value to be kept within the 
County Archive Service. 

 
To whom returned/transferred: 

 
Date returned/transferred: 
 

2. Quantity: 1 box or part thereof (C/C/L/22/1-6, Wednesbury Borough) 
 

Reasons: These records are within the collecting area of Sandwell Archives. That authority 
does already hold minutes for Wednesbury but may have gaps and has requested that the 
files be transferred. 

If any items are not required by that office, they will be duplicates and will have no additional 
value to be kept within the County Archive Service, so will have permission to dispose of 

them. 
 
To whom returned/transferred: 

 
Date returned/transferred: 

 
B. Records to be destroyed:  

 

Quantity: 25 boxes (C/C/L/1-12, 14-19, 21-24) 
 

Reasons: These duplicates were collected by the County Clerk’s department in the 1950s. 
Since that date those districts within the modern county have since deposited their official 
sets of minutes, either following the 1974 local government reorganisation or more recently. 

For those areas no longer within the modern county, the respective archive offices in the 
West Midlands have checked their own holdings of official minutes and found them to be 

duplicated, so have declined these copies. 
 
(The exceptions are C/C/L/13, Rugeley Urban District Council, which are missing from our 

collections, and C/C/L/20, Tamworth Borough, for which we do not have a collection. It is 
presumed the originals are at Tamworth Castle Museum. These two series will be disposed 

of in the future if the original minutes are deposited at any future date.) 
 
Permission gained from owner or permission not required (please specify): 

Permission is not required (owned by the County Council) Page 88



 
 

Date of destruction: 
 

 
Deaccessioned in paper accessions register and on CALM accessions database  
 

Paper and online catalogues removed or updated  
 

The National Archives notified  
 
 

Signature of Archivist:        Date: 
 

Signature of member of Joint Archives Committee:   Date: 

Page 89





APPENDIX 1 
 

STAFFORDSHIRE AND STOKE ON TRENT ARCHIVE SERVICE 
 

REAPPRAISAL AND DISPOSAL RECORD SHEET 

 
 

PART ONE: COLLECTION INFORMATION 

 

Staffordshire Record Office 
 
Collection reference: 735 (sections 4/6/1-5 OS maps and 5/1 postcards) 

 
 
Collection title: 

 
Miscellaneous collection from the offices of George Horne & Son, auctioneers 

 
Date of deposit or donation: 1964, at the closure of the firm 

 
 
Ownership: 

 
Staffordshire County Council 

 
 
Legal obligations and conditions of acquisition/grants: 

(indicate whether under Acceptance in Lieu scheme, or subject to purchase or 
cataloguing grant, etc. Also check if there is a record of any previous appraisal process) 

 
None 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
File in appropriate deposit file, and Freedom of Information Legislation file 

Page 91



PART TWO: APPRAISAL INFORMATION 
 
Date of appraisal: 4 February 2022 

 
Appraisal decisions: 

 
A. Records to be offered for transfer or destroyed if unwanted 

 
1. Quantity: Rolls of Ordnance Survey printed maps, various editions and scales, mostly 

for areas outside Staffordshire, also some duplicates of Staffordshire maps already held 
(reference 735/4/6/1-5) 

2. Quantity: 2 boxes of postcards and photographs mounted on postcards for places 

outside Staffordshire (reference 735/5/1) 
 

Reasons: These records are outside the collecting area of Staffordshire Record Office and 
the Museum Service, the William Salt Library and Stoke on Trent City Archives. Where the 
Ordnance Survey printed maps do relate to Staffordshire most have already been identified 

as duplicates. Any non-duplicates for Staffordshire will be retained. 
 

To whom returned/transferred: 
 
Date returned/transferred: 

 
B. Records to be destroyed:  

 
See above, for any remaining items. 
 

 
Permission gained from owner or permission not required (please specify): 

Permission is not required (owned by the County Council) 
 
 

Date of destruction: 
 

 
Deaccessioned in paper accessions register and on CALM accessions database  
 

Paper and online catalogues removed or updated  
 

The National Archives notified  
 
 

Signature of Archivist:        Date: 
 

Signature of member of Joint Archives Committee:   Date: 

Page 92



Document is Restricted

Page 93

Agenda Item 11
Not for publication by virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3 
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972




	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meeting held on 11 November 2021
	4 Predicted Outturn 2021/22 and 2022/23 Revenue Budget
	Appendix 1 - Forecast Outturn 2021 22
	Appendix 2 - Archives Reserves
	Appendix 3 - Budget 2022 23

	5 Review of Joint Agreement
	4740395 - Joint Archive Committee Agreement dated 06.07.2021

	6 Staffordshire History Centre Project - Update
	Appendix 1 SHC key decisions 3.3.2022
	Appendix 2 Access during temporary closure of Staffordshire Record Office

	7 Predicted Performance Outturn 2021/2022
	Appendix 1 Archives  Heritage Service Delivery Plan 2021 predicted outturn

	8 Disposals from Staffordshire Archive Collections
	Appendix 1 - Appraisal and disposal assessment C-C-L
	Appendix 2 - Appraisal and disposal assessment 735pt

	11 Exempt minutes of meeting held on 11 November 2021

